FEB 11 1993

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

case no. 8//83dca case no. 91-1248 Chief Deputy Clerk

JUAN NOVATON,

Petitioner,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

BENNETT H. BRUMMER
Public Defender
Eleventh Judicial Circuit
of Florida
1351 Northwest 12th Street
Miami, Florida 33125
(305) 545-3009

LOUIS CAMPBELL Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 0833320

Counsel for Respondent

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner, Juan Novaton, was the appellant in the district court of appeal, and the defendant in the trial court. Respondent, The State of Florida, was the appellee in the district court of appeal, and the prosecution in the trial court. This brief refers to the parties as the "state" and the "defendant." The symbol "A." denotes the appendix to this brief, consisting of the opinion of the district court of appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The petitioner, Juan Novaton, entered into a negotiated plea agreement with the state, under which he would plead guilty to the several offenses charged in two separate informations, and would

be sentenced as a violent habitual felony offender to concurrent terms totalling fifty years in prison, subject to a fifteen-year minimum-mandatory requirement. (A. 2). Had he gone to trial and been convicted as charged, the petitioner would have faced the possibility of a life sentence without parole. (A. 2). The trial court accepted the plea after a plea colloquy. (A. 2). The resulting adjudications and sentences included several for the enhanced felonies of burglary, robbery, and aggravated battery with a firearm, and two for the separate crimes of possessing a firearm in the commission of those same felonies. (A. 2).

Mr. Novaton appealed, on the ground that the convictions and sentences for the two counts of possession of a firearm in the commission of a felony were barred by the double jeopardy principles enunciated in <u>Cleveland v. State</u>, 587 So. 2d 1145 (Fla. 1991). (A. 2). The district court of appeal agreed, but held that the plea bargain effected a waiver of the double jeopardy claim. (A. 2). The court recognized that its decision is contrary to decisions of the Fourth and Second District Courts of Appeal. (A. 3). This petition for discretionary review follows.

QUESTION PRESENTED

WHETHER THE DECISION IN THE INSTANT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN ARNOLD v. STATE, 578 So. 2d 515 THE 4th DCA 1991), AND \mathbf{OF} SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN KURTZ V. STATE, 564 So. 2d 519 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The district court's opinion explicitly recognizes that its decision is contrary to decisions of other district courts of appeal on the question of whether cumulative convictions and sentences which are barred under the principles enunciated in Cleveland v. State, 587 So.2d 1145 (Fla. 1991), are waived by the entry of a plea. Accordingly, this Court has jurisdiction to review. That jurisdiction should be exercised and the conflict resolved because of the recurring nature of the problem presented, and its fundamental importance in the administration of criminal justice.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION IN THE INSTANT CASE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE DECISIONS OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN ARNOLD v. STATE, 578 So. 2d 515 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991), AND OF THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN KURTZ v. STATE, 564 So. 2d 519 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990).

Under this Court's decision in <u>Cleveland v. State</u>, 587 So. 2d 1145 (Fla. 1991), where an offense has been enhanced because of the use of a firearm, the legislature did not intend that separate punishment also be exacted for the offense of possession of a firearm during the commission of the same felony, and, accordingly, such cumulative punishment is barred by the double jeopardy clause.

In Arnold v. State, 578 So. 2d 515 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991), and Kurtz v. State, 564 So. 2d 519 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990), the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the Second District Court of Appeal, respectively, held that the illegality of a dual conviction and

sentence which is barred by the double jeopardy clause is not waived by the entry of a plea. In this case, while explicitly recognizing the contrary authority of <u>Arnold</u> and <u>Kurtz</u>, the Third District Court of Appeal held that challenges to both cumulative convictions and cumulative sentences are waived by a negotiated plea. (A. 2-3).

With respect to the convictions, the district court's opinion states that in the Third District "a waiver of a <u>Cleveland-type</u> violation with respect to multiple convictions takes place when the defendant voluntarily pleads guilty to the allegedly duplications charges in question," and also cites as contrary authority the cases of Arnold and Kurtz.

With respect to the sentences, the district court recognized that "a mere plea does not waive a challenge to dual or multiple sentences which are also precluded by the <u>Cleveland</u> rule" (A. 3), but held "for the first time that a defendant who enters into a negotiated plea and sentence bargain with the prosecution thereby waives an otherwise viable double jeopardy objection to sentences which form part of the agreement." (A. 1).

Because the decision expressly and directly conflicts with decisions of at least two other district courts of appeal, this Court has jurisdiction to review. Art. V, §3(b)(3), Fla. Const. The conflict should be resolved in view of the inevitably recurring nature of the problem presented, namely, whether a plea can waive the illegality of imposing punishment which is constitutionally barred because the legislature did not intend that it be imposed.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument and authorities, petitioner requests this Court to grant review.