IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

GLERK, SUPREME COURT

By- Chief Deputy Clerk

CASE NO. 81,183

JUAN NOVATON,

Petitioner,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, THIRD DISTRICT

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

RANDALL SUTTON

Florida Bar No. 0766070
Assistant Attorney General
Department of Legal Affairs
401 N. W. 2nd Avenue, Suite N921
P.O. Box 013241
Miami, Florida 33101
(305) 377-5441

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts the Statement of the Case and Facts as presented by Petitioner, with the exception of the following statement found on page 2 of Petitioner's brief:

The court recognized that its decision is contrary to decisions of the Fourth and Second District Courts of Appeal.

The decision of the court below speaks for itself.

QUESTION PRESENTED

WHETHER THE DECISION BELOW DIRECTLY AND EXPRESSLY CONFLICTS WITH ARNOLD V. STATE OR KURTZ V. STATE?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In order for this court to assume jurisdiction based upon conflict, the conflict must be both express and direct. Here, neither case cited by Petitioner expressly conflicts with the holding below. As such, there is no basis for this court to assume jurisdiction. Even were there a basis for conflict jurisdiction, the decision below comports with prior precedent of this court, the the court below and the federal courts. As such review of this case would not be an efficient or necessary utilization of this court's resources. Petitioner's application for review should be denied.

ARGUMENT

NEITHER ARNOLD V. STATE NOR KURTZ V. STATE EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH THE HOLDING BELOW.

Petioner asserts that the holding below conflicts with the decisions set forth in <u>Arnold v. State</u>, 578 So. 2d 515 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991), and <u>Kurtz v. State</u>, 564 So. 2d 519 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990). However, a comparison of those cases with the opinion below reveals that there is no conflict in a jurisdictional sense.

In order to support the jurisdiction of this court an alleged conflict must be both direct and express. A conflict which may merely be inferred is insufficient. Art. V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const.; Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1986); Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829 (Fla. 1986); Jenkins v. State, 385 So. 2d 1356 (Fla. 1980).

Here, the court below held that Petitioner waived his double jeopardy claims when he pled to both the convictions and specific sentences received. The court relied upon and extended its previous holding in <u>Guardado v. State</u>, 562 So. 2d 696 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990), <u>rev. den.</u>, 576 So. 2d 287 (Fla. 1990). In <u>Arnold</u>, the Fourth District observed that as a general rule, a plea bargain does not result in an <u>automatic</u> waiver of jeopardy claims. <u>Arnold</u>, at 516. It went on to cite <u>Guardado</u> as an example of where

there are circumstances which will constitute a waiver.

Id. 1 Although the court found that Arnold had not waived his claims, it did not hold that such claims may never be waived. As such no express conflict exists.

In <u>Kurtz</u>, the court did not discuss the issue of waiver. It is not apparent from the opinion whether that issue was raised. At best it can be inferred that the court rejected the waiver argument. However, a conflict by inference will not support the jurisdiction of this court.

Finally, even assuming that conflict existed, this court should decline to accept this case for review. The decision below comports with prior precedent of this court, the Third District and the federal courts. See, State v. Johnson, 483 So. 2d 420 (Fla. 1986); Guardado, supra; Jacobs v. State, 522 So. 2d 540 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988), rev. den., 531 So. 2d 1353 (Fla. Rodriguez v. State, 441 So. 2d 1129 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983), 1988); rev. den., 451 So. 2d 850 (Fla. 1984); Preston v. State, 411 So. 2d 297 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982), rev. den., 418 So. 2d 1280 (Fla. 1982); Smith v. State, 345 So. 2d 1080 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977), cert. den., 353 So. 2d 678 (Fla. 1977); United States v. Broce, 488 U.S. 563, 109 S. Ct. 757, 102 L. Ed. 2d 927 (1989); Ricketts v. Adamson, 483 U.S. 1, 107 S. Ct. 2680, 97 L. Ed. 2d 1 (1987); and Dermota v. United States, 895 F.2d 1324 (11th Cir. 1990), cert. den., ___ U.S. ___, 111 S. Ct. 107, 112 L. Ed. 2d 78 (1990). As

The court did not set forth what "circumstances" would, in its estimation, constitute a waiver. As such, any finding of conflict would have to based upon supposition as to the Fourth District's future rulings.

such, review of Defendant's case would not be the best use of this court's scarce resources.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Pettioner's application for review should be denied.